OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA

Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and
location given below.

Meeting of the: Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton
Date /Time: Monday, August 22, 2016 @ 4:00 pm.
kﬂocai')on'_ Mayor’s Office (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)
embers. Pat O’Conner (Chair), Thomas Majewski (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, and
Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio member)
1 Call to Order
* Alderpersons Sid Boersma and Thomas Majewski will attend the meeting via telephone
2 Approval of the July 25, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes
3 Communications
4 Review and possible action regarding Opera House job descriptions
5 * Review and possible action regarding the budgetary numbers requested at the July 25" meeting
for the pay plan. (Tabled until September 12, 2016 Personnel Meeting due to the Mayor being out of
the country.)
6 Future Agenda Items
e Additional Position Descriptions from Springsted
7 Adjournment

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.
NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.

Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances.




OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA

Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and
location given below.

Meeting of the: Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton
Date /Time: Monday, August 22, 2016 @ 4:00 pm.
kﬂocai')on'_ Mayor’s Office (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)
embers. Pat O’Conner (Chair), Thomas Majewski (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, and
Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio member)
1 Call to Order
* Alderpersons Sid Boersma and Thomas Majewski will attend the meeting via telephone
2 Approval of the July 25, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes
3 Communications
4 Review and possible action regarding Opera House job descriptions
5 * Review and possible action regarding the budgetary numbers requested at the July 25" meeting
for the pay plan. (Tabled until September 12, 2016 Personnel Meeting due to the Mayor being out of
the country.)
6 Future Agenda Items
e Additional Position Descriptions from Springsted
7 Adjournment

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.
NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.

Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances.






PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Monday, July 25, 2016 @ 6:00pm
Mayor’s Office

Present: Pat O’Connor (Chair), Thomas Majewski (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma,

Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio), Human Resources Director Amy Jo Gillingham, Utilities Finance &
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, Senior Center Director Cindy McGlynn, Ann Antonsen, Springsted
Incorporated

1. CALLTO ORDER: Chairperson O’Connor called the meeting to order at 6:07pm.

2. Approval of the Minutes: Chairperson O’Connor asked for discussion on the minutes of June 6,
2016. HR Director Gillingham addressed questions and clarifications. Motion to approve by
Boersma, Second by Majewski. Motion carried 4-0.

3. Communications: HR Director Gillingham: C. Dollhausen’s last day is August 12, 2016. We have
asked her to document procedures and provide suggestions as time permits. Utilities has provided
inquiry access to the Microsoft Dynamics payroll module so that HR can lookup wage and benefit
enrollment information. Utilities has provided a schedule with automated calculation for Life
Insurance and Income Continuation Insurance premiums. HR and Finance staff held a meeting to
discuss redundancies within City and Utility accounting procedures. Staff recommends no changes
to the existing procedures. The City has some existing position vacancies in Parks, Library, Opera
House and Police Dispatch. The HR department is in the process of updating position descriptions
for these vacant positions. Tom Majewski: Requested that HR Director Gillingham provide a copy
of the proposed position description changes to him. Utilities Finance Manager Kim Jennings:
Explained that she is working with HR Director Gillingham and Springsted to assign classifications
and wage ranges for each Utility position. Employees and supervisors will complete Position
Analysis Questionnaires and send to Ann Antonsen for review and comments. Sid Boersma: Shared
that he and others have agreed to assist at the Opera House in order to ensure a smooth transition
with the departure of Ms. Dollhousen.

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the Springsted Classification and Compensation Study:
Chairperson O’Connor asked HR Director Gillingham and Ann Antonsen to provide a status and
summary of recommendations for the City’s compensation plan as outlined by the Springsted
Classification and Compensation Study. HR Director Gillingham and Ann Antonsen: Presented a
summary of recommendations as they appear in the meeting packet. At this point, City staff and
Springsted Inc. have analyzed each position in the City and assigned a grade level to the position
with a minimum, midpoint and maximum wage. The grade level is based on a review of Position
Analysis Questionnaires prepared by employees and supervisors and Market Wage Comparisons.
Any positions with current wages that fell below the recommended minimum were adjusted to the
minimum on January 1, 2016. More detail was provided on the ideology behind the “steps” within
each grade. The steps between minimum and midpoint are intended as a path for an employee to
get to their average market wage (midpoint) over a reasonable period, provided they are meeting
the expectations of the position. The steps between midpoint and maximum are available to the
employee if they consistently exceed expectations and provide added value to their position. The
Committee was asked to consider, discuss and take action on the following items: Should the






differential between steps stay at 2.75%? How and when will the entire classification scale be
updated to reflect changing market comparisons? Should all Department Head positions move to
midpoint as of January 1, 2017? Discussion followed. Motion by Boersma to “move remaining
four Department Head positions to midpoint, change the classification scale to represent a 2%
differential between each step rather than 2.75%, change the classification scale to reflect market
changes from 2015 to 2017, and provide the total financial implication of this for the calendar
year 2017. Seconded by Majewski. Motion carried 4-0. HR Director Gillingham stated that she
would also provide financial implications of placing all positions on the next step within their grade
classification for discussion at the next meeting.

Old Business: The Committee discussed corrections to policies and procedures documents that
were made by HR Director Gillingham because of discussion during the June 6, 2016 meeting. The
Committee is happy with the corrections and wishes to forward to the City Council for approval.

HR Director Gillingham explained that she met with Utilities Finance & Administrative Manager Kim
Jennings and City Finance and Economic Development Director Laurie Sullivan to discuss potential
redundancies in City and Utility accounting structure. It was agreed that there are no redundancies
and no changes are recommended.

Future Agenda Items:

Review additional Position Descriptions from Springsted and for vacant positions.
Review financial implications of compensation plan recommendations.

Motion to adjourn by Majewski, Seconded by Boersma. Motion carried 4-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Kim Jennings, Utilities Finance & Administrative Manager






City of Stoughton Amy Jo Gillingham
Department of Director

Human Resources & Risk Management
381 East Main Street Stoughton, W1 53589

(608) 646-0272 www.cistoughton wius

August 11, 2016

To:
Re:

Personnel Committee
Opera House Request/Restructure

OPERA HOUSE UPDATED/RESTRUCTURED JOB DESCRIPTIONS & GRADE LEVELS

Opera House Director

The major change in this position was the removal of the Media Services management
responsibilities. The title has been updated from Media Services & Opera House
Director to Opera House Director. With the change in responsibilities the Springsted
study came back with a grade range one level lower for the new position.

Opera House Director Grade Level 13 Range $55344.16-563384.19-
$72891.82
Media Svcs. & Opera House Dir. Grade Level 14 Range  $58,664.81-

$67187.24-577265.33

Opera House Director current wage= $34.86 = $72529.60 salary
Medical Benefits $523.17 X 12=$6278.04

Dental $27.50 X 12= $330.00

WRS 6.6%=54786.95

FICA 7.65%=5548.51

Life=$7.20 X 12= $84.00

Total Estimated Cost= $89557.10

House Manager

This is a newly created position that has duties from the Event Coordinator position as
well as some new responsibilities. The title has been updated from Event Coordinator
to House Manager. With the change in responsibilities the Springsted study came back
with a grade range 10 for the new position.






House Manager Grade Level 10 Range $46468.02-553218.59-
$61201.38
Event Coordinator Grade Level 11 Range $49256.10-556411.70-
$64873.46

House Manager current wage= $23.68 X 2080=549254.40
Medical Benefits $1360.24 X12=516322.88

Dental $75.83 X 12=5909.96

WRS 6.6%=3250.79

FICA 7.65%=53767.96

Life $3.86 X 12=546.32

Total Estimated Cost= $73552.31

Box Office Manager and Volunteer Coordinator

This is a newly created position that has duties from the Assistant Event Coordinator
position as well as new responsibilities such as the management of the Box Office,
Business Development and Marketing/Branding.  The title has been updated from
Assistant Event Coordinator to Box Office Manager and Volunteer Coordinator. With
the change in responsibilities the Springsted study came back with a grade range 8 for
the new position. Note: the current position is 1560 hours annually

Box Office Mgr. /Coord. Grade Level 8 Range $31017.28-535523.26-
$40851.75 (2080 hrs.)

Asst, Event Coordinator Grade Level 4 Range $24568.59-528137.75-
$32358.42

Box Office Mgr./Coord. current wage= $15.74 X 1560=24554.40
Medical Benefits $523.17X12= PRORATED DUE TO 1560

Dental $27.50 X 12= PRORATED DUE TO 1560

WRS 6.6%=

FICA 7.65%





Question for Bill:
> Both the House Manager and Box Office Manager Positions state in the

summery that the person will routinely be required to schedule and or
supervise volunteers and pt. hrly staff. Whose primary responsibility is
this?

» Who's handling the contracting and finding the artists?

> Julia’s position- moving to full time? 1560 or 2080






OPERA HOUSE DIRECTOR

City of Stoughton

SALARY RANGE

SUMMARY OF POSITION:
The purpose of this position is to provide comprehensive management of the Stoughton Opera House. The

person in this position is responsible for all staff management within the Stoughton Opera House and is directly

supervised by the Mayor.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this position, but do not
compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to
accomplish the main goals of this position,

Business Development

» Research the existing market and emerging trends in the music industry and use this data and analysis to
make decisions on where there is potential for growth or change. Make recommendations to the Opera
House Board and Mayor on any changes they may need to make in the structure or activities of the Opera
House in order to achieve set cbjectives.

* Analyze the existing customer base or audience and current revenues from ticket sales, memberships, and
donations to identify potential opportunities and advise the Opera House Board and Mayor on any action
that may be required to maximize further potential.

Fund Development and Outreach

* Support the financial well-being of the Opera House through fundraising.

* Make contact with donors, business and community leaders and/or organizations to convey the goals of
the Opera House while explaining how financial contribution can help further the mission.

* Host or attend events in order to persuade funding sources.

¢ Collaborate with a wide variety of local groups, encouraging the use of arts related activities to support
their development and improve the quality of life of individuals within the local community.

e Act as a liaison between member donors or other funding sources and the Opera House Board and City
staff. Mediate as well as voice their concerns.

» ldentify and complete grant application processes for funding provided by institutions such as a
government departments, corporations, foundations or trusts.

e Manage regular annual fundraising efforts including but not limited to membership/donor drives and
special fundraising events such as music festivals and/or special performance series.

Booking






* Maintain an excellent knowledge of the contemporary music scene and an understanding of what sells.
This may reguire scouting new bands, artists, and music through the attendance of shows and/or music
festivals.

* Network with venue operators, music promoters and bockers,

e Manage all financial matters in connection with scheduled events including negotiating contracts and
contract riders with performers, agents and/or management. This also includes the approval and/or
creation of written offers for services and the execution of contracts on behalf of the Opera House.

e Maintain a database of information regarding agencies, contacts, and other performer information
including tour schedules and potential up-and-coming musicians.

+ Field calls from musicians, artists, agents, and/or management companies.

e Conceive and schedule a complete and balanced performance season in line with Opera House goals and
performing arts trends to run from early fall through iate spring.

Viarketing and Branding

*  Maintain knowledge of the music business and of current trends along with knowledge of competitors.

» Work with Opera House staff and Board in defining the unigue identity and marketing position of the
Qpera House within the overall landscape of arts and culture in the region.

e Manage and/or perform responses to feedback including decisions on where and how to prioritize
marketing efforts.

+ Manage the design, creation, and distribution of marketing materials including but not limited to posters,
print or web advertisements, promotions, and the annual Arts & Culture guide.

s Act as liaison with contracted Graphic Artists and Designers in the creation of logos and other marketing
materials.

¢ Manage the presence of the Opera House on the web, in social media and email campaigns as well as in
other emerging digital media platforms.

¢ Manage the creation and distribution of informational press releases or editorials to various media outlets
and/or events calendars,

s Analyze customer response to marketing, promotional, and branding campaigns in relation to sales trends
and make appropriate adjustments,

Facility and Event Management

¢ QOversee all operations of the venue including the management of staff, the oversight of all procedures, the
troubleshooting of any problems, general routine maintenance, equipment upkeep and maintenance and
specialized restoration maintenance,

s Assist staff and/or volunteers in the performance of daily functions when required, including: answering
calls, meeting and greeting visitors, selling tickets, maintaining information and display materials, and
dealing with mail, faxes, and deliveries.

* Manage, supervise, assign and/or perform specific duties related to contractual staging, technology, and
hospitality requirements for each live performance depending on the musicians and the type of event.

e Manage, supervise, assign and/or perform specific duties related to backline duties associated with events
including but not limited to equipment rental, equipment load-in and/or set-up, and equipment load-out,

¢ Maintain a basic knowledge of audio, lighting and other stage equipment in the event other designated
staff are unavailable to perform those duties.

Box Office Management

e Manage and assist Opera House staff in ensuring that they are appropriately trained in the use of all box
office systems.

* Ensure that all box office hours are adequately staffed.

s Manage the programming of box office ticketing software.






e Regularly review sales and audience reports from box office systems to identify audience trends and areas
of adjustments needed in overall marketing.

¢ Maintain a complete knowledge of box office systems and be prepared to perform any unstaffed duties
including the sale of tickets or merchandise.

Financial

* Prepare an annual budget for the Opera House for each fiscal year (calendar year) for review and
consideration by the Mayor and Finance Director in the preparation of their annual City budget. including
narratives providing explanations of services and service fevels provided by the Department via the
Budgeting for Outcomes program,.

e Prepare an annual budget for the Opera House for each performance season for review by the Opera
House Board. The season budget includes $900,000 - $1,000,000 in expenses with approximately 80% of
those expenses expected to be offset by the Director’s projections of earned revenues through ticket sales,
donations, memberships, etc.

¢ Manage the review and processing of invoices for expenditures of the Opera House including data entry
into City budget tracking software as well as allocations and submission of receipts from expenditures paid
through the City purchasing card software application

e Prepare monthly and annual financial projections and reports.

QUALIFICATIONS:
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and:
Education/Training/Certifications
Four year degree in a related field and at least two years of paid experience in a related field or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.
Must have a valid Wisconsin Driver’s License.
Working knowledge of software applications used in graphic design, word processing, email, etc,

Language Skills

* Ability to perform data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.
Requires discretion in determining and referencing established criteria to define consequences and
develop alternatives.

» Ability to direct, supervise, manage, persuade, convince, influence, train, and monitor, in favor of a desired
outcome, Reguires the ability to act as a facilities manager.

¢ Ability to communicate effectively with the veterans and internal committees, all department staff, other
City departments, consultants, performers, the Opera House Board and Mayor, as well as the public.

Mathematical Skills

e Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, divisian, calculate percentages, fractions, and
decimals.

e  Ability to perform mathematical operations involving event expense reports and income projections,
budgetary responsibilities, fundraising, and statistical data related to marketing analysis and economic
forecasting.

Reasoning Ability

e Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating,
and controliing.

* Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and
techniques to problem resolution. '

* Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation
of information against sensory, judgmental, and/or subjective criteria, as opposed to criteria that are






clearly measurable or verifiable.

Physical Abilities

¢ Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as
computer terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier,
paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone.

* Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing.

e Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some
combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling.

TYPICAL WORK ENVIRONMENT:
s Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factars is minimal
and poses little to no risk of injury.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER:

The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with applicable state and federal law,
the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.







OPERA HOUSE
HOUSE MANAGER

City of Stoughton

SALARY RANGE

SUMMARY OF POSITION:
The purpose of this position is to provide support to the Opera House Director in the operation of the

Stoughton Opera House with a particular emphasis on preparation and implementation associated with
performances and events in both an administrative as well as logistical capacity. The person in this position will
routinely be required to schedule and/or supervise volunteers and part-time hourly staff at the discretion of
the Opera House Director. This position is directly supervised by the Opera House Director.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this position, but do not
compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to
accomplish the main goals of this position.

Business Development

* Make recommendations to the Opera House Director on any changes they may need to make in the
structure or activities of the Opera House in order to achieve set objectives in the planning and
implementation of performances and events.

e Maintain a database of resources in the areas of hospitality, sound engineering, theatrical lighting, manual
labor, and merchandise sales including volunteers, interns, and contracted individuals or businesses.

Fund Development and Qutreach

¢ Participate in fundraising initiatives as requested by the Director.

¢ Act as a point of contact when needed between donors, business, and community leaders or organizations
and the Opera House Director.

s Host and/or participate in events intended to persuade funding sources.

e Collaborate with local arts groups as directed to support their development and improve the quality of life
of individuals within the local community.

e Act as a liaison when needed between member donors or other funding sources and the Opera House
Director. Mediate as well as volce their concerns.

* Assist the Director in identifying funding provided by institutions such as government departments,
corporations, foundations or trusts.

+ Participate in regular annual fundraising efforts including but not limited to membership/donor drives and
special fundraising events such as music festivals or special performance series.






Booking

Maintain an excellent knowledge of the contemporary music scene and an understanding of what sells.
This may require scouting new bands, artists, and music through the attendance of shows and/or music
festivals,

Make recommendations to the Director regarding booking of future performances.

Advise the Opera House Director on matters associated with scheduled events with an emphasis on
negotiating and reviewing contract riders with performers, agents and/or management.

Assist the Director in the creation of written offers and contracts for services on behalf of the Opera House.
Field calls from musicians, artists, agents, and/or management companies on behalf on the Director,

Marketing and Branding

Maintain knowledge of the music business and of current trends along with knowledge of competitors.
Work with the Director in defining the unique identity and marketing position of the Opera House within
the overall landscape of arts and culture in the region.

Participate in the design, creation, and distribution of marketing materials including but not limited to
posters, print or web advertisements, promotions, and the annual Arts & Culture guide.

Provide feedback to the Director throughout the creation of marketing materials.

Facility and Event Management’

In the absence of the Director oversee all operations of the venue including the management of staff and
the oversight of all procedures.

Assist staff and/or volunteers in the performance of daily functions when required including answering
calls, meeting and greeting visitors, seliing tickets, maintaining information and display materials, and
dealing with mail, faxes, and deliveries.

Assist the Director in maintaining a master calendar of events scheduled to take place in the venue.

Work in concert with the Director in the scheduling of contracted and/or seasonal staff for all events.
Coordinate other rentals of facility, develop and maintain rental contracts and agreements, and invoice per
contract agreement,

Supervise or perform specific duties related to contractual staging, technology, and hospitality
requirements for each live performance depending on the musicians and the type of event. This includes
day of show duties as well as advancing.

Supervise or perform specific duties related to backline duties associated with events including but not
limited to equipment rental, equipment load-in and/or set-up, and equipment load-out. This includes day
of show duties as well as advancing.

Maintain a basic knowledge of audio; lighting and other stage equipment in the event ather desighated
staff is unavailable to perform those duties.

Perform other related office administrative tasks, correspondence, and filing as required.

Box Office Management

Process ticket orders, memberships, and reply to inquiries regarding events and tickets as required.
Maintain a complete knowledge of box office systems and be prepared to perform any unstaffed duties
including the sale of tickets or merchandise.

Financial

Perform the processing of invoices for expenditures of the Opera House including data entry into City
budget tracking software as well as allocations and submission of receipts from expenditures paid through
the City purchasing card software application for review by the Director.

Process deposit payment checks and final payment checks for artists through the City Finance Office.






QUALIFICATIONS:
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and:

Education/Training/Certifications

e Fouryear degree in a related field and at least two years of paid experience in a related field or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.

* NMust have a valid Wisconsin Driver’s License.

* Working knowledge of software applications used in graphic design, word processing, email, etc.

Language Skills

* Ability to perform data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.
Requires discretion in determining and referencing established criteria to define consequences and
‘develop alternatives

s The ability to direct, supervise, manage, persuade, convince, influence, train, and monitor, in favor of a
desired outcome. Requires the ability to act as a facilities manager.

e Ability to communicate effectively with the veterans and internal committees, all department staff, other
City departments, consultants, performers, the Opera House Board and Mayor, as well as the public

Mathematical Skills

*  Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, division, calculate percentages, fractions, and
decimals.

* Ability to perform mathematical operations involving event expense reports and income projections,
budgetary responsibilities, fundraising, and statistical data related to marketing analysis and economic
forecasting.

Reasoning Ability

*  Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating,
and controlling.

*  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and
techniques to problem resolution.

+ Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity reguired in situations involving the evaluation
of information against sensory, judgmental, and/or subjective criteria, as opposed to criteria that are
clearly measurable or verifiable.

Physical Abilities
¢ Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as
computer terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier,
paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone.
* Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limhs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing.
e Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some
combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling.

TYPICAL WORK ENVIRONMENT:
* Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal

and poses little to no risk of injury.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER:
The City of Stoughton Is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with applicable state and federal law,






the City wifl provide reasonabie accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.







OPERA HOUSE

BOX OFFICE MANAGER
- AND VOLUNTEER
COORDINATOR

City of Stoughton

SALARY RANGE

SUMMARY OF POSITION:
The purpose of this position is to provide support to the Opera House Director in the operation of the

Stoughton Opera House with a particular emphasis on Box Office operations and volunteer coordination. The
person in this position will routinely be required to schedule and/or supervise volunteers and part-time hourly
staff at the discretion of the Opera House Director. This position is directly supervised by the Opera House

Director.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this position, but do not
compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to
accomplish the main goals of this position.

Box Office Management

¢ Train box office staff and/or volunteers in the use of all box office systems and provide on site user
support.

* Scheduling of seasonal staff and/or volunteers to ensure that all box office hours are adequately
staffed.

e Ensure that all box office staff and/or volunteers adhere to established talking points and branding
when interacting with the public.

s Problem solve independently with box cffice technaology.

* Process ticket orders, memberships, and reply to inquiries regarding events and tickets.
Maintain a complete knowledge of all box office systems and be prepared to perform any unstaffed
duties including the sale of tickets or merchandise.

¢ Act as the first point of contact between the Opera House and our contracted ticketing company.

¢ Supervise or perform daily balancing of the cash box and perform deposits to the City Finance

Department as directed.

Business Development
e Make recommendations to the Opera House Director on any changes they may need to make in the






organization of the Box Office, Ticketing System, Volunteers, and on-line presence in order to achieve
set objectives based on observations of emerging trends.

Maintain consistent branding of the Opera House in the box office through the use of talking points
and consistent messaging developed in cooperation with the Director.

Maintain a database of the existing customer hase or audience and current revenues from ticket sales,
memberships, and donations for the purpose of assisting the Director in identifying opportunities to
maximize potential outcomes.

-

Fund Development and Outreach

Participate In fundraising initiatives as requested by the Director.

When necessary act as a point of contact between donors, business, and community leaders or
organizations and the Opera House Director.

As requested by the Director host or attend events in order to persuade funding sources.

As requested by the Director, collaborate with local arts groups as directed to support their
deveiopment and improve the quality of life of individuals within the local community.

When Necessary act as a liaison between member donors or other funding sources and the Opera
House Director. Mediate as well as voice their concerns.

Participate in regular annual fundraising efforts including but not limited to membership/donor drives
and special fundraising events such as music festivals or special performance series,

Marketing and Branding

Supervise or perform updates to the Opera House website, ticketing page, and social media pages.
Maintain knowledge of the music business and of current trends along with knowledge of competitors.
Work with the Director in defining the unique identity and marketing position of the Opera House
within the overall fandscape of arts and culture in the region.

Maintain a record of feedback to assist the Director in decisions regarding where and how to prioritize
marketing efforts.

Participate in the design, creation, and distribution of marketing materials including but not limited to
posters, print or web advertisements, promotions, and the annual Arts & Culture guide.

Create and distribute informational press releases to various media outlets and/or events calendars.

Facility and Event Management

In the absence of the Director or House Manager, oversee all operations of the venue including the
management of staff and the oversight of all procedures.

Supervise or perform daily functions including answering calls, meeting and greeting visitors, selling
tickets, maintaining information and display materials, and dealing with mail, faxes, and deliveries.
Supervise or perform specific duties related to ticket delivery including mail order, walk-up, and will
call.

Handle sudden unexpected situations inveolving the public or performers effectively.

When needed, assist with specific duties associated with events including but not limited to hospitality,
equipment load-in, and other stage work.

Maintain a basic knowledge of audio; lighting and other stage equipment in the event other designated
staff is unavailable to perform those duties.

Perform other related office administrative tasks, correspondence, and filing as required.

Volunteer Coordination

Train and supervise volunteer ushers.
Train and supervise volunteer ticket sellers.






* Train, supervise, and schedule volunteer merchandise selfers.
e Schedule adequate volunteer ushers for all events using on-line sighup tool.

Financial
¢ Perform the processing of invoices for expenditures of the Opera House including data entry into City
budget tracking software as well as allocations and submission of receipts from expenditures paid
through the City purchasing card software application for review by the Director.
e Supervise or perform the counting of money as needed.
* Supervise or perform deposits to the City Finance Department as directed.

QUALIFICATIONS:
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and:

Education/Training/Certifications
» Fouryear degree in a related field and at least two years of paid experience in a related field or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.
* Must have a valid Wisconsin Driver’s License.
*  Working knowledge of software applications used in graphic design, word processing, email, etc.

Language Skills

*  Ability to perform data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.
Requires discretion in determining and referencing established criteria to define consequences and
develop alternatives

* The ability to direct, supervise, manage, persuade, convince, influence, train, and monitor, in favor of a
desired outcome. Requires the ability to act as a facilities manager.

*  Ability to communicate effectively with the veterans and internal committees, all department staff,
other City departments, consultants, performers, the Opera House Board and Mayor, as well as the
public

Mathematical Skills
*  Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, division, calculate percentages, fractions, and
decimals.
» Ability to perform mathematical operations involving event expense reports and income projections,
budgetary responsibilities, fundraising, and statistical data related to marketing analysis and economic
forecasting.

Reasoning Ability

» Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading, teaching, directing, planning,
coordinating, and controlling.

» Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and
technigues to problem resolution.

» Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the
evaluation of information against sensory, judgmental, and/or subjective criteria, as opposed to criteria
that are clearly measurable or verifiable.

Physical Abilities
» Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such
as computer terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter,
photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone.






* Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing.

s Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some
combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling.

TYPICAL WORK ENVIRONMENT:
» Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is

minimal and poses little to ne risk of injury.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER:
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with applicable state and federal law,
the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both

prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.






